

LEGAL ASPECTS

OF DOING BUSINESS

IN IOWA



NOV 8 1968

OFFICE FOR PLANNING & PROGRAMMING

IOWA DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 250 Jewett Building Des Moines, Iowa 50309

CONTENTS

	Page
Corporations	1
Application to Existing Corporations	
Iowa Securities Law Blue Sky Law	4
Partnerships	7
Labor Legislation	8
Employer-Employee Relationship9Fair Employment Practices10Blacklisting11Prohibited Types of Strikes11Hours and Wages12Child Labor13Arbitration of Labor Disputes15Health and Safety Laws16Boiler Inspections19	
Workmen's Compensation	19
Unemployment Insurance	25
Taxation	29
Income Tax 29 Sales Tax 32 Use Tax 36 Property Tax 38 Open Port Warehousing 41 Chain Store Tax 41	
Security Transactions	42
Real Estate	

Creditors' Remedies	48
Judgment and Execution48Attachment and Garnishment48Proceedings Auxiliary to Execution49Exemptions49Stockholder Liability50Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors50	
Trade Regulation	51
Combinations, Pools, and Trusts	
Local Ordinances and Planning and Zoning	54
Municipal Ordinances	
Natural Resources	59
Water Use. 59 Water Pollution 60 Projects on Floodways or Flood Plains 61 Air Pollution Control 62 Oil and Gas 62 Surface Mining 62	
Industrial Development	63
Municipal Support of Industrial Prospects	
Public IItilities Regulation	66

CORPORATIONS

In 1959 Iowa adopted a modification of the Model Business Corporation Act sponsored by the American Bar Association. Iowa follows the model act in its entirety with the exception of a few deviations that preserve desirable features of previous Iowa law and practices.

Application to Existing Corporations

The new Iowa act does not apply to certain special types of corporations and entities permitted under Iowa statutes, such as cooperatives, non-profit corporations, insurance companies, banks, credit unions, and building and loan and savings and loan associations.

Domestic corporations formed after July 4, 1959, have the option of organizing under the new act or under the old Iowa law. However, all foreign corporations that apply for authority to do business within the state after July 4, 1959, are subject to the provisions of the new act.

After July 4, 1961, all foreign corporations not otherwise excluded from the act became subject to it. Domestic corporations will not be subject to the act unless they elect to become so.

Foreign Corporations

A foreign corporation that has qualified to transact business in this state enjoys the same but no greater rights and privileges as domestic corporations. The Iowa act contains the provisions of the model code concerning the foreign corporation's name, registered office and agent and failure to maintain such office or agent, and the procedures

for a corporation to withdraw from the state and to have its certificate of authority revoked. Any foreign corporation that transacts business in this state without a certificate of authority is prohibited from maintaining any action, suit, or proceedings in any court in this state.

Information regarding application requirements for authority to transact business in Iowa may be obtained from the Iowa Secretary of State.

Domestic Corporations

The act closely follows the model act on the formation, operation, and dissolution of domestic corporations. In so doing, the Iowa act greatly clarifies and codifies Iowa practice in the field of corporate law.

Filing Fees and Miscellaneous Charges

The act sets the following fees:

- (a) For filing articles of incorporation, amendments, articles of merger or consolidation, or an application by a foreign corporation for authority to transact business in this state, for registration of a trade name by a foreign corporation, and for annual renewal of registered name--\$20.
- (b) For filing an amendment to articles of incorporation of a foreign corporation--\$10.
- (c) For filing an application to reserve a corporate name, a notice of transfer of a reserved corporate name, a statement of the establishment of a series of shares, a statement of

cancellation of shares, a statement of reduction of stated capital, annual fee for foreign corporation's registration of trade name, or an application for withdrawal of a foreign corporation--\$5.

- (d) For registering a registered name -- \$2 a month between the date of filing and December 31 of the calendar year in which an application for a registered name is filed.
- (e) For filing a statement of change of address of registered office or change of registered agent, statement of intent to dissolve, a statement of revocation of voluntary dissolution, articles of dissolution, or filing any other statement or report except an annual report—\$1.

Annual License Fees

An annual license fee must be paid at the time the annual report is filed. The fee is imposed on both domestic and foreign corporations based on the stated capital of the corporation. A foreign corporation may elect to report the fair and reasonable value of its property employed and used in Iowa as of January 1 of each year; its license fee will be based on this value. The graduated annual license fees are set forth in the following schedule:

		STATED CAPITA	L		FEE
		Not over	\$	20,000	\$ 5
Over	\$ 20,000	but not over		40,000	10
Over	40,000	but not over		60,000	15
Over	60,000	but not over		80,000	20

Over	80,000	but not over	100,000	25
Over	100,000	but not over	150,000	30
Over	150,000	but not over	200,000	35
Over	200,000	but not over	250,000	40
Over	250,000	but not over	300,000	45
Over	300,000	but not over	350,000	50
Over	350,000	but not over	400,000	55
Over	400,000	but not over	500,000	60
Over	500,000	but not over	600,000	70
Over	600,000	but not over	700,000	80
Over	700,000	but not over	800,000	90
Over	800,000	but not over	900,000	100
Over	900,000	but not over	1,000,000	110
Over	1,000,000	but not over	2,500,000	175
Over	2,500,000	but not over	5,000,000	250
Over	5,000,000	but not over	10,000,000	350
Over	10,000,000	but not over	50,000,000	800
Over	50,000,000	but not over	100,000,000	1,200
Over	100,000,000	but not over	200,000,000	1,600
Over	200,000,000	but not over	300,000,000	2,000
Over	300,000,000	but not over	500,000,000	2,500
Over	500,000,000			3,000

Domestic corporations with no stated capital and foreign corporations with no stated capital and/or no property in Iowa shall pay an annual license fee of five dollars.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 496A (as amended by the 62nd G.A., HF 563, 1967).

Clarence Cosson, "Iowa Business Corporation Act," 45 Iowa Law Review 12 (1959).

IOWA SECURITIES LAW -- BLUE SKY LAW

The responsibility for administering the Iowa Securities Law is vested in the Securities Department, which is headed by a Superintendent of Securities who is responsible to the Commissioner of Insurance. The

law gives the Commissioner of Insurance broad powers over the issuance and sale of securities in the state.

The basic plan of the statute is to place responsibility for proper conduct in issuing, selling, and dealing in securities on the persons who seek the capital. The act requires disclosure of all pertinent information concerning the security to the Commissioner of Insurance; he determines whether the security qualifies for registration.

The Iowa Securities Law applies to all securities sold or offered to the public in the state except exempt securities and securities sold in exempt transactions. Among exempt securities are securities of regulated utilities, nonprofit corporations organized for religious, educational, fraternal, or reformatory purposes, securities bought and sold on any stock exchange that has been approved by the head of the Securities Department, securities of banks and insurance companies, commercial paper, securities evidencing indebtedness due under conditional sale contracts, securities issued by the Dominion of Canada or any province thereof, securities of certain cooperative associations, and securities of Economic Development Corporations. Exempt transactions include judicial and fiduciaries' sales, pledgees' and mortgagees' sales to liquidate pledged securities, isolated transactions for the owner's account, stock dividends, employee stock purchase plans, security transfers or exchanges in connection with reorganizations, mergers, or consolidations, and issuance of another security pursuant to conversion rights.

Also exempt are the sales of subscriptions for or securities of a corporation before its incorporation if no commission is received from the sale and if the number of subscribers does not exceed twenty-five.

Another exempt transaction is the sale of securities by the issuer of those securities, to not more than twenty people, within any consecutive twelve-month period, provided no commission is given for the sale, and the sale is reported to the Commissioner of Insurance.

Securities that are not exempt or that are not sold in exempt transactions must be registered by qualification or notification. The basis for registration of a security is that its sale would not be unfair, unjust or inequitable to the purchaser thereof, or would not work or tend to work a fraud upon the purchaser, or that the enterprise or business of the issuer is not based on unsound principles.

The Insurance Commissioner may limit the price at which registered securities are sold, and, in the case of sales by or on behalf of an issuer, the Commissioner may allow a commission not to exceed twenty percent of the sale price, which must include all sales expenses. A filing fee of one-tenth of one percent of the aggregate offering price of the securities to be registered and sold in Iowa must be paid to the Commissioner of Insurance. The minimum fee is \$25 and the maximum, \$1,000. False or fraudulent statements, or concealment of material facts, knowingly made in an advertisement or prospectus for the purpose of inducing persons to buy securities, constitute a felony punishable by a fine of not less than \$500 nor more than \$5,000, or by imprisonment

for not more than five years, or both.

Securities dealers and salesmen are required to register annually with the Commissioner of Insurance. "Good repute" and "competence" are the standards set for acceptance of a registration. First-time applicants are required to take an examination. Registration is for one year with renewal privileges; the annual registration fee for a dealer is \$50 and for a salesman, \$5. Dealers are required to file a \$5,000 bond.

Sale of Stock on Installment Plan

A corporation may sell stock on an installment plan if the Commissioner of Insurance authorizes it to do so. An unauthorized sale on an installment plan is a misdemeanor punishable by a county jail term of one year or a fine of not less than \$100 nor more than \$1,000, or both. A corporation that is authorized to make such sales must post a bond and pay an annual fee. The Insurance Commissioner determines whether the authorization shall be renewed each year.

References:

Iowa Code, 1966, Chapters 501, 502.

Sterling Alexander and Vernon Grant, Jr., "The Administration of Iowa Securities Law," 28 Iowa Code Annotated 685.

"Blue Sky Legislation," 23 Iowa Law Review 102 (1937).

PARTNERSHIPS

The common law governs partnerships in Iowa; there is no statutory law of partnerships as such. However, there is a statutory require-

ment that a partnership that uses a name other than the surnames of the partners must file with the county recorder of the county in which the business is to be conducted a verified statement showing the name, post office address, and residence address of each person who owns or has any interest in the business, and the address at which the business is to be conducted. The recording fee is \$2.

The Uniform Limited Partnership Act has been adopted in Iowa.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 545,547.

- T. M. Hutchison, "Enforceability of Iowa Creditors' Judgment Against Partnership and Partners' Assets," 44 Iowa Law Review 643 (1959).
- A. N. Polasky, "Planning for the Disposition of a Substantial Interest in a Closely Held Business, Part II The Partnership Interest," 45 Iowa Law Review 46 (1959).

Edward R. Hayes, "Iowa Corporations and Partnerships: 1942-1952," 38 Iowa Law Review 462 (1953).

"The Farm Operation Agreement - Partnership or Lease," 6 Drake Law Review 37 (1956).

LABOR LEGISLATION

Iowa, like most of the states, has a series of statutory provisions relating to employer-employee relationships. However, if a business is one "affecting interstate commerce" or "producing goods for commerce," some state laws are superseded by federal law. The discussions in this section do not include laws of a technical nature that apply only to businesses of a specialized character, nor do they

include federal law or attempt to explain the areas in which federal law supersedes state law.

General Laws

Employer-Employee Relationship

Iowa has the so-called "right to work" law. Under this type of statute an employer may not refuse employment or dismiss a person if the <u>only</u> ground of refusal is that:

- 1. the applicant is a member of a union, or
- 2. the applicant is not a member of a union, or
- 3. the applicant refuses to join a union in the future, or
- the applicant intends to resign from a union in the future, or
- 5. the employer has contracted or agreed with another person, firm, association, corporation, or labor organization to exclude persons from employment on the grounds listed above, or
- 6. the applicant is a member of the National Guard.

It is also a violation of the law if, as a condition of or prerequisite to employment, any person is required to pay dues or fees, make contributions, or pay fines or assessments to any labor union, association, or organization.

Any person, organization, or corporation that violates or aids in violating this law is guilty of a misdemeanor. In addition, the Iowa

statute provides that any violation may be restrained by injunction.

Fair Employment Practices

Iowa has a "Civil Rights Act" similar to the Fair Employment
Practices Commission (FEPC) laws of other states providing for a Commission charged with the enforcement of the Act. Upon the finding of a violation of the Act, the Commission may order the violator to cease and desist such violation and, in addition, among other things, order the hiring, reinstatement, or upgrading of employees with or without back pay. Any order issued by the Commission may be appealed de novo to the District Court. The court may receive additional testimony and make, affirm, modify or reverse the order of the Commission.

Every person in Iowa is entitled to the opportunity for employment on equal terms with every other person. If an applicant for employment is qualified to perform the services or work required, it is unlawful for any person or employer to discriminate in employment because of race, religion, color, national origin, or ancestry.

It is also unlawful for any labor union or organization or an officer of a labor union or organization to discriminate against any person as to membership because of race, religion, color, national origin, or ancestry.

Any person, employer, labor union or organization, or officer of a labor union or organization convicted of a violation of the Fair Employment Practices Act is subject to a fine of not more than \$100 or imprisonment in the county jail for not to exceed thirty days.

Blacklisting

It is unlawful for any person, agent, company, or corporation, after having discharged an employee from his or its service, to prevent or attempt to prevent, by word or writing of any kind, the discharged employee from obtaining employment with any other employer except by furnishing in writing upon request a truthful statement as to the reason for the discharge.

Prohibited Types of Strikes

It is unlawful for any labor union or its officers, representatives, or members to enter into or carry out by strikes or violence, or threats of either, any contract, agreement, arrangement, combination, or conspiracy for the purpose of forcing or requiring:

- any person, firm, or corporation to cease using, selling, handling, transporting, or dealing in the goods or products of any <u>other</u> person, firm, or corporation, or
- any person, firm, or corporation to cease selling, transporting, or delivering goods or products to any other person, firm, or corporation, or
- 3. any employer other than their own employer to recognize, deal with, comply with the demands of, or employ members of any labor union, association, or organization, or
- 4. an employer to break an existing collective bargaining agreement that the employer may have with any labor union, association, or organization.

The statute also prohibits any labor union or its officers, representatives, or members from causing a stoppage or slow down of work because of a dispute between unions regarding jurisdiction over, or the right to do, the work or a part of the work of the employer.

Iowa law also prohibits the employment of "professional strikebreakers."

Violations of the above provisions are misdemeanors. Injunctions may be issued to restrain violation.

Hours and Wages

There are no state minimum wage laws in Iowa.

Deductions from wages for labor organization dues, charges, fees, contributions, fines, and assessments must not be made unless the employee presents to the employer a written assignment; the assignment may be revoked by the employee at any time by giving thirty days' written notice to the employer.

A wage assignment, except those by an employee to a labor organization, is not enforceable against the employer unless the employer has agreed to it in writing.

There are no general laws regulating hours of work in Iowa, except the child labor laws.

The Iowa law does limit the working hours of railroad employees and persons who operate motor vehicles. Employees who operate commercial motor vehicles on Iowa highways must be given at least eight hours off duty if they drive twelve hours out of each twenty-four hours.

If they drive twelve consecutive hours out of any twenty-four hour period, they must be relieved from duty for ten consecutive hours.

Child Labor

Scope of Act

The Iowa Child Labor Law prohibits employment of a child under the age of fourteen in any industrial or mercantile shop in which eight or more persons are employed, unless the establishment is operated by the child's parents. Children under sixteen may be employed if the employer complies with the following conditions:

- 1. that the working day does not exceed eight hours per day and forty hours per week, and that the hours of employment are between 7:00 A.M. and 6:00 P.M. with at least one-half hour lunch period;
- that the employer has obtained a work permit from the superintendent of schools or his representative; and
- 3. that two lists of the names and ages of all employees under sixteen are kept by the employer, one of which is posted in a conspicuous place.

The law prohibits any child under sixteen years of age from working in or about any hotel, restaurant, cafe, bowling alley, pool room, cigar store, or barber shop, or in any occupation that endangers the individual's health or morals.

Other Limitations

It is unlawful to allow any child under sixteen to clean machinery

while it is in motion, to operate or assist in operating an elevator, or to operate or assist in operating dangerous machinery. Girls under eighteen cannot lawfully clean machinery while it is in motion, nor may girls under twenty-one be employed in a capacity that requires them to remain standing constantly.

Boys under eleven and girls under eighteen cannot be employed in any city of 10,000 population or more or in connection with street occupations, such as distributing circulars or newspapers. Before boys between the ages of eleven and sixteen may be so employed, a work permit must be obtained and a badge authorizing his employment must be issued. Boys under eleven can receive special permission from the school superintendent after recommendation by a judge for such employment.

In cities with 10,000 or more population no person under eighteen can be employed to deliver goods or messages between 10:00 P.M. and 5:00 A.M.

No person under twenty-one can be employed as a driver of a motor vehicle used in the transportation of freight or passengers for compensation between fixed terminals, or over a regular route, or as a driver of a motor vehicle used as a carrier of inflammables or combustibles, or as a public or common carrier of persons.

No parent or other person having the custody of a child shall permit, and no employer shall knowingly permit, a child under the age of ten (10) years to be engaged, with or without compensation as a migratory agricultural laborer. No parent or other person having the custody

of a child shall permit, and no employer shall knowingly permit, a child under the age of fourteen (14) years to be engaged as a migratory agricultural laborer on any day prior to or during the regular school hours of any private or public school which teaches general education subjects and which is available to such child.

Administration

Most violations of the child labor law are deemed to be misdemeanors punishable by a fine not to exceed \$100 or by imprisonment for not more than thirty days. The Iowa Labor Commissioner is charged with enforcement of the statute.

Arbitration of Labor Disputes

Although Iowa has two arbitration statutes still in force, they are used only rarely.

The general arbitration statute has not been changed substantially since its enactment in 1851. Its scope is restricted to "all controversies which might be the subject of civil action." Many types of disputes thus are excluded from the act's application.

A labor arbitration act was enacted in 1913, but the tremendous expansion of federal jurisdiction over labor matters in recent years and the limitations included in the Iowa act have restricted its application also.

The overwhelming majority of labor arbitration in Iowa today is achieved through common-law contracts between the parties. Contracts to arbitrate and submission agreements are binding contracts; a defaulting party may be held liable for ascertainable damages for breach of such

contracts. After an award is made it is usually enforceable in court.

There has been relatively little litigation following arbitration of labor disputes in recent years. Apparently the factors that led the parties to arbitrate in the first place continue to oblige them to abide by the arbitration awards.

Health and Safety Laws

The Iowa "Health and Safety Appliance Law" applies to manufacturing and mercantile establishments, including factories, workshops, and mills. It is designed to safeguard employees' health and to prevent industrial injuries. Every manufacturing or mercantile establishment in which five or more people are employed is required to provide toilet facilities for employees' use. Such facilities must be kept clean; there must be at least one for every twenty employees. Men's and women's facilities must be separate. Adequate washing facilities and drinking water must be supplied by the employer. If a change of clothing is required, separate dressing rooms and lockers for male and female employees must be furnished. Where practicable, each female employee is to have a seat at or beside her counter or workbench.

The Iowa law requires that steam boilers be equipped with steam and water gauges and safety valves. As far as practicable, industrial machinery must be equipped with loose pulleys and belt shifters or other safe means for throwing belts on and off pulleys. Protective guards or housing must be installed around all gears, cogs, belting, shafting, tumbling rods, universal or knuckle joints, set screws, saws, planes,

and other machinery that is located or used in such manner as to subject employees to possible injury. When any guard or safety appliance is removed from a machine it must be replaced as soon as possible. All factories in which emery wheels or similar devices are used for tumbling or polishing castings must have sufficient blowers and pipes to protect employees from the dust. However, grinding machines that use water at the point of grinding contact and small emery wheels that are used temporarily for tool grinding do not have to have blowers and pipes. Shops that employ only one man in such work may be exempt, at the Labor Commissioner's discretion, from the provisions requiring blowers and pipes. If the processes performed in a factory result in giving off deleterious gases, the building must be equipped with adequate pipes or flues to provide easy escape for such fumes.

The Labor Commissioner and the mayors and police chiefs of municipalities are charged with enforcing the health and safety appliance laws. Upon discovery of any violation, the Commissioner must give written notice to the employer and allow him between seven and thirty days, depending on the nature of the defect constituting the violation, in which to remedy the defect. The time limit may be extended by the Commissioner if good cause is shown. Anyone violating the provisions of this statute is guilty of a misdemeanor; the maximum penalty is a \$100 fine, except the maximum penalty for the violation of a steam boiler regulation is a \$500 fine.

Any accident involving an employee while working for his employer

that results in death or the loss of two or more days' work must be recorded by the employer and a report of the accident forwarded to the Labor Commissioner within forty-eight hours after the accident. No statement contained in the report is admissible in any action arising out of the accident.

Further, the law provides that an employee is deemed <u>not</u> to have assumed the risk if he continues work knowing of a defect if the employer also had knowledge of the defect and it was the employer's duty to furnish safe machinery and a safe place in which to work, unless the employee has the regular duty to repair such defects. Nor is the employee deemed to have waived negligence unless the danger is so evident that a reasonably prudent person would not have continued to work.

The 1965 legislature created an eight member Employment Safety

Commission to make safety regulations for all Iowa business. The Commission is made up of four persons representing employers and four representing employees, all appointed by the Governor. Each member of the

Commission shall have had substantial experience in the area of employment safety before his appointment.

The Commission has adopted Rules which concern: floor and wall openings, railings, toe boards, demolition electrical installations in hazardous locations and excavations.

Rules under consideration concern head, eye and respiratory protection as well as safety rules for power actuated tools.

Boiler Inspections

The Boiler Inspection law provides for a state inspection and regulation of boilers, tanks, jacket kettles, generators and other appurtenances used to generate or transmit steam for power or to use steam for heating or steaming. Boilers used in an industrial establishment carrying less than 15 pounds pressure, do not have to be inspected. Inspection fees are provided on a graduated scale. The owner or user must display certificates issued to show the inspector's approval. The certificate limits the allowed pressure in the appurtenance. Ten days' written notice of intention to install such appurtenances must be given to the Commissioner of Labor. Inspection under this chapter can be waived by the Commissioner of Labor upon proof of inspection by a representative of a reputable insurance company and coverage by insurance.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 88, 88A, 89, 90, 92, 536, 539 (as amended by 62nd GA HF 178, 1967), 679, 735, 736, 736A, 736B, and the Iowa Departmental Rules.

Thomas W. Stewart, <u>Iowa Labor Laws</u> (Revised edition by Clarence M. Updegraff), (Bureau of Labor and Management, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, 1959).

WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION

Iowa's Workmen's Compensation Law is an elective as distinguished from a compulsory statute. Unless rejected by either party in the manner provided by statute, both employer and employee are presumed

conclusively to have elected workmen's compensation coverage. In the absence of effective rejection, workmen's compensation coverage is treated as a part of the employment contract, with the limitation that workmen's compensation liability cannot be contracted away. If both parties have accepted coverage and an employee sustains a personal injury arising out of and in the course of his employment, workmen's compensation is the exclusive remedy against the employer available to the employee, his estate representative, dependents, or next of kin, and no action for damages is available. The employer is subrogated to the rights of the employee against any third party causing the injury. Every Iowa employer, regardless of the number of employees, and interstate employers that have employees who work only in this state, are liable for workmen's compensation, in the absence of a valid rejection.

Although employer and employee are permitted to reject workmen's compensation, rejection is discouraged. If either or both parties reject coverage, the only remedy is a negligence action. If the employer alone rejects coverage and an action at law is brought, the employer is not allowed to avoid liability on the basis of assumption of risk, the fellow servant negligence rule, or contributory negligence, and it is presumed, subject to rebuttal, that the employee's injury was caused by the employer's negligence. If the employee rejects coverage, the employer can use these defenses.

In order for an industrial injury to come within the coverage of the act and be compensable it is necessary that: (1) the injured person be an officer or an employee of the person charged with compensation liability, (2) the specific injury be compensable under the act, (3) the injury arise out of and in the course of employment, (4) the injury was not the result of the employee's willful intent or intoxication, and (5) notice of the injury be given within 90 days.

Payments

The maximum liability of the employer for an employee's injury is as follows:

- 1. The total amount allowed for medical, surgical, hospital services and supplies, services of special nurses, one set of prosthetic devices, and ambulance charges is not limited. However, if the aggregate of the charges exceeds \$7,500, special application must be made to the Industrial Commissioner.
- Costs of examination and reimbursement for loss of pay during such examination.
- Crutches, artificial members, and appliances;
 however, the employer is not liable for more than
 one permanent prosthetic device.
- 4. In a case of temporary disability, compensation payments are payable up to 300 weeks; payments are based on two-thirds of the employee's average weekly earnings; and the maximum weekly payments are dependent on the number of children the employee

has. An employee who has four or more children is limited to \$56 per week; payments are graduated down to \$40 per week for an employee who has no children.

- 5. In a case of permanent partial disability, compensation payments are made for a "healing period" according to the same schedule as for temporary disability plus weekly payments based on two-thirds of the employee's weekly earnings up to 500 weeks with a maximum of \$23,750.
- 6. In a case of permanent total disability, weekly payments are to be based on two-thirds of the employee's weekly earnings for a period not to exceed 500 weeks with a maximum of \$23,750.

If an accident results in an employee's death and there is coverage, the employer is liable for the reasonable expenses of burial up to \$500 and, if there are dependents surviving, for compensation payments up to 300 weeks with a maximum of \$14,250.

The minimum payment for temporary disability, permanent partial disability, permanent total disability, or death benefits is \$18 per week, or the actual amount of average weekly earnings if less than \$18.

Future payments may be commuted to a present worth lump sum payment after approval by the Industrial Commissioner and district court or joint waiver of district court approval.

Credit for Benefits Paid Under Group Plans

If a disabled employee receives any benefits, including medical, surgical, or hospital benefits, under any group plan covering nonoccupational disabilities contributed to wholly or partially by the employer, which benefits should not have been paid or payable if any rights of recovery existed under the Workmen's Compensation or Occupational Disease Compensation laws, then the amounts paid to the employee from the group plan are credited to or against any compensation payments made or to be made. This provision does not apply to payments made under any group plan which would have been payable even though there was an injury under the Workmen's Compensation law or an occupational disease under the Occupational Disease Compensation law.

Employers subject to the provisions of the act must insure their liability with an approved insurer unless the Insurance Commissioner allows self insurance. To obtain self insurance, the employer must demonstrate to the Commissioner his solvency and financial ability to pay the benefits allowed by statute or deposit satisfactory security with the Commissioner. The employee cannot be required to pay premiums for such insurance.

Special provisions in the Iowa statute cover liability for the "second injury" and "occupational disease." The "second injury" provisions are limited in scope to protecting the employer from paying full permanent disability compensation in certain cases in which there has been a specifically enumerated previous injury followed by a permanent

disabling second injury. Employers or insurers may have to pay \$100 to a State "second injury" fund for every death compensable under the Workmen's Compensation law. Certain "occupational diseases" are listed in the statute; the employer may be liable for diseases not included in the list if they result from injurious exposure.

The Workmen's Compensation Act is administered by the Industrial Commissioner. He has general supervisory powers and all voluntary compensation agreements must be approved by him. If a compensation agreement cannot be reached by the parties, the initial hearing is held before a deputy commissioner. There is a right of appeal from the deputy's decision to the Commissioner; further appeals may be taken to the courts.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 85 (as amended, 62nd GA Chapter 115, 1967) 85A, 86, 87.

Harry W. Dahl and others, "Iowa Workmen's Compensation Law," 17 <u>Drake Law Review</u> (May 1967).

"Iowa Workmen's Compensation Law," 16 <u>Drake Law Review</u> (1967).

"Workmen's Compensation Benefits in Iowa," 45 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 867 (1960).

"Iowa Workmen's Compensation Procedure," 45 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 787 (1960).

Maurice H. Merrill, "Fifteen More Years of Workmen's Compensation in Iowa," 32 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 1 (1946).

Maurice H. Merrill, "Commentary of the Iowa Workmen's Compensation Act," 17 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 186, 343 (1932).

"The Iowa Law of Workmen's Compensation," <u>Monograph Series No. 8</u> (Iowa City: Center for Labor and Management, College of Business Administration, The University of Iowa, July 1967).

Willard L. Boyd and others, "The Iowa Law of Workmen's Compensation" (Iowa City: Bureau of Labor and Management, The University of Iowa, 1960).

For material concerning specific problems under the act, see the Cumulative Index to the Iowa Law Review.

For additional information concerning the application and administration of the act or for a copy of the statute, write to the Industrial Commissioner, State House, Des Moines, Iowa 50319.

UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

The Iowa Employment Security Law applies to any employing unit that employs four or more workers for some portion of a day in each of twenty different weeks within a calendar year regardless of whether such weeks are consecutive. It also applies to the purchaser of an enterprise or business which at the time of such purchase is liable under the Iowa law. Further, when one or more employing units are owned or controlled by the same interests and when counted together have an aggregate of four or more workers for some portion of a day in each of twenty different weeks in a calendar year, each unit becomes liable under the Iowa law. Any enterprise or business is liable under the Iowa law regardless of the number of workers, if it is liable under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act. In addition, an employer may voluntarily elect to become subject to the law.

The unemployment compensation program is a co-ordinated state and federal plan. The state tax or contribution, at a base of 2.7 percent of the taxable wages paid by an employer, is allowed as a credit against

¹Employers pay Iowa unemployment tax only on the first \$3,000 of wages paid to each employee during the calendar year.

the 3.1 percent federal tax. The Iowa law employs a system of experience rating by which individual employers' contribution rates are varied from the standard rate (2.7 percent) on the basis of their unemployment risk experience. An employer is eligible for a reduced tax rate for the calendar year following October 1 if he has been subject to the Act for at least fourteen consecutive calendar quarters preceding October 1.

When an employer becomes liable, through successorship to the business of a liable employer, the predecessor's experience is considered in determining eligibility for, and computation of a reduced rate.

For purposes of establishing the tax rate, Iowa employs the reserve-ratio formula, which is essentially cost accounting. The law establishes different tax rates based on the ratio that the difference between the employer's total contributions and the total benefits paid to his employees bears to his average annual payroll for the preceding three years. The ratio thus established determines the employer's tax rate. The tax rate is reduced when the ratio reaches the levels of two and three-tenths and continues to drop until the ratio reaches eight percent. The tax is eliminated if the ratio reaches the eight percent level. The maximum rate for employers with a negative ratio (where an employer's benefit payments to his employees exceed his contributions to the fund) is 4.0 percent. In no event shall an employer's contribution rate be more than 2.7 percent of the first \$10,000 of taxable wages for insured work paid during any calendar quarter. The law allows voluntary contributions for the purpose of increasing the ratio and obtaining a lower rate, or for holding a rate at the previous year's level.

The law provides for payment of weekly benefits to workers who are unemployed and who meet certain prescribed eligibility requirements. The worker must have been employed for a period including the first four of the last five completed calendar quarters preceding the date on which he files a valid claim for benefits. This is the base period used in computing payments. The amount credited to a worker's account in wage credits is equal to one-third of his quarterly earnings. The weekly benefit amount is one-twenty-second of his total wages in the calendar quarter in his base period in which his earnings were highest. The maximum benefit payment is based upon one-half of the average weekly insured wage paid in the state as determined annually by the Employment Security Commission. However, the maximum total amount of benefits payable to any eligible individual during any benefit year may not exceed the total of the wage credits accrued to his account during his base period, or twenty-six times his weekly benefit amount, whichever is least. In order to be eligible the worker must be unemployed, able to work, available for work, and be earnestly and actively seeking work. Availability is determined on a week-to-week basis and each claimant must keep the local area claims office currently advised of his availability.

Each employer during the claimant's base period is notified of the claim and is instructed to inform the Commission of any cause of separation from work by the claimant that the employer believes might make the claimant ineligible for benefits. Possible bases for disqualification include:

- 1. Voluntary quitting not attributable to the employer.
 This does not include leaving employment in good faith to accept better employment, which the employee did accept and remained at continuously for not less than six weeks.
- Discharge for misconduct, which causes the forfeiture of not less than four nor more than nine weeks' benefits.
- 3. Failure to accept suitable work.
- 4. Participation in labor disputes.

The law permits an employer to contest a claim in order to protect his tax rate determining ratio. A commission deputy will issue a determination; this is appealable to an appeal referee. This decision is appealable to the Commission and its ruling may be appealed to the district court.

The Iowa unemployment insurance provisions are embodied in Chapter 96 of the Iowa Code. This legislation is administered by the Iowa Employment Security Commission, which consists of three full-time members appointed by the Governor subject to Senate approval. One of the members represents labor, one represents employers, and the third represents the public.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 96.

Fred Slavick, <u>Voluntary Quit Disqualification in Unemployment Insurance--</u>
<u>The Iowa Experience</u> (Bureau of Labor and Managerment, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, 1958).

"Administration of Benefits Under the Iowa Employment Security Law," 35 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 79 (1949).

"Employers Subject to the Iowa Employment Security Law," 4 <u>Drake</u> <u>Law Review</u> 28 (1954).

Edward D. Wickersham, <u>Supplemental Unemployment Benefits</u> (Bureau of Labor and Management, State University of Iowa, Iowa City, 1956).

State of Iowa Employers Handbook.

State of Iowa Workers Handbook.

State of Iowa Employment Security Law.

For additional information, write the Iowa Employment Security Commission, 1000 E. Grand, Des Moines, Iowa.

TAXATION

Income Tax

The Iowa corporate income tax is imposed on every corporation organized under the laws of this state and on every foreign corporation that does business in Iowa. Any association or organization that reports as a corporation for federal income tax purposes is considered a corporation for Iowa corporation income tax purposes, unless exempt by Iowa law. Banks, some financial institutions, and insurance companies are exempted from filing the tax returns. Partnerships do not pay an Iowa income tax but do file a return for information purposes only.

The tax is imposed on the net income received during the income year, after adjustment by subtracting fifty percent (50%) of the federal income taxes. The rates of tax are progressively graduated and are four percent (4%) on the first twenty-five thousand dollars, or any part thereof;

between twenty-five thousand and one hundred thousand dollars, or any part thereof, at the rate of six percent (6%); on all taxable income over one hundred thousand dollars, the rate is eight percent (8%), received by the corporation from business done within the state during the taxable year. The rate of change is effective for fiscal years ending in 1967 and succeeding years. The fifty percent (50%) federal tax deduction is effective for calendar year 1967, and thereafter. Corporations must prorate income on a "month to full year" basis in applying the rate(s) of taxation for tax years ending in 1967. The tax rates for fiscal years ending in 1967 are shown by the following example:

Corporation's Assumed Year - 9-1-66 ending 8-31-67

Months in 1967 = 8 = 66.6667%Months in year = 12

Months in 1966 = 4 = 33.3333%Months in year = 12

Corporation's Assumed Income Subject to Iowa Tax - \$200,000.00

1st \$ 25,000 @ 4% = \$ 1,000.00 Next \$ 75,000 @ 6% = 4,500.00 Balance of \$100,000 @ 8% = 8,000.00 TOTAL \$13,500.00

Tax for 8 months in 1967 \$13,500 @ 66.6667% = \$ 9,000.00 \$200,000 @ 1966 rate of 4% - 8,000 Tax for 4 months in 1966 - 8,000 @ 33.3333% = 2,666.67 TOTAL TAX FOR THE TAX YEAR......\$11,666.67

If the trade or business is carried on entirely within the state, the tax is imposed on the entire net income. If the business activity is carried on partly without the state, the tax is imposed only on the portion of net income reasonably attributable to the trade or business carried on within

the state. The statutory formula for determining the portion of income from sales or manufacturing that is taxable income shall bear the same ratio to the total income as the gross sales (carried on) within the state bear to the total gross sales. Gross sales (carried on) within the state is regarded as the gross sales from goods sold and delivered within the state, excluding deliveries for transportation out of state. If the corporation believes that this method of determining taxable income is inapplicable and inequitable, it can file an objection with the Iowa State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), and submit an alternative method for computing its taxable income. The Iowa State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), has authority to confirm alternative method(s) provided such alternative method(s) do not work to allocate or apportion more taxable income to Iowa than would be assigned to Iowa under the method previously described.

In computing net income the starting point is the federal taxable income. To this must be added: (1) interest and dividends from foreign securities and from securities of state and other political subdivisions that are exempt from federal income tax; and (2) the Iowa income tax deducted in computing the federal taxable income. From this must be subtracted: (1) fifty percent (50%) of the federal income tax paid or accrued during the year and allocable to Iowa; and (2) interest and dividends received from federal securities. The Iowa provisions relating to capital gains and losses, and to gains and losses from exchanges of property deviate but slightly from federal income tax law. A corporation

that has taken the net operating loss deduction for federal income tax purposes is allowed a net operating loss deduction (as applicable) for state income tax purposes; if the corporation is subject to allocation provisions, the total federal income tax (50% of which is an adjustment deduction in determining Iowa taxable income) must be limited to the amount of federal tax based on income allocated to Iowa; similarly, the net operating loss that is allocable to Iowa is determined by the ratio of income allocated (to Iowa) to total allocable income.

The Iowa income tax is due on or before the last day of the fourth month after the expiration of the tax year. Among the penalties applicable for nonpayment are forfeiture of the articles of incorporation of a domestic corporation, or the permit to do business in Iowa of a foreign corporation.

There is a personal income tax withholding law in effect in Iowa.

Corporations are withholding agents under this law.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 422 (as amended by Laws 62nd General Assembly, 1967, House File 702, Division V).

1966 Iowa Departmental Rules 687-694.

L. K. Tunks, "The Iowa Tax System," 23 Iowa Code Annotated 73.

Sales Tax

As of October 1, 1967, the sales tax will apply to sales of tangible personal property, consisting of goods, wares, or merchandise sold at retail in the state to consumers, or users, as well as to the gross receipts

from the rendering, furnishing, or performing of particular services as enumerated in the law. "Services" is defined as all acts or services rendered, furnished, or performed, other than for an employer, for a valuable consideration by any person engaged in any business or occupation specifically enumerated. The sales tax rate on both goods and services is three percent (3%) of the gross receipts from such sales. Sales tax is also imposed on the rental of all rooms, apartments, or sleeping quarters in hotels, motels, rooming houses, etc. The tax does not apply if the quarters are rented by the same person for more than thirty-one (31) consecutive days. Sales of gas, electricity, heat, water and communication services are also taxed at the three percent (3%) rate.

All Iowa retailers of tangible personal property or of the enumerated services must obtain a retail sales tax permit. A permit must be obtained for each separate business location at which retail sales are made. However, a retailer who has a sales tax permit for a particular business location which allows him to make retail sales of goods need not obtain a separate permit if he also furnishes taxable services. The fee for each permit is one dollar, there is no renewal required.

The tax is not imposed on the article sold or the service rendered, rather it is an excise tax on the gross receipts from such sales. The retailers must add the tax to the price of the goods sold or services rendered, and collect the tax from the consumer as a part of the total charge for the goods or the services. However, it is the retailer who is ultimately liable to the state for remittance of the tax.

The retailer must keep records of the gross proceeds of his sales and must preserve these records for five years. He must file a quarterly return due the first day of the month following the close of the quarter, Every retailer who collects more than five hundred dollars in retail sales tax in any one month must deposit his sales tax receipts before the twentieth day of the month next succeeding the month of collection. In the absence of cooperation by the retailer, the Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), may estimate his sales from available indices and determine the amount of tax, after notice and hearing.

The tax does not apply to sales in interstate commerce. If tangible personal property is sold within the state and the seller is obligated to deliver it to a point without the state, the tax does not apply. When the contract to sell at retail takes place within the state and the seller delivers the goods from a point outside of Iowa directly to the buyer in Iowa, the sale is deemed to be an intrastate sale subject to the tax. In order for services to be taxable, they must have been rendered, furnished, or performed in this state, or their product or result used in this state. (See use tax portion of this book.)

The sales tax applies to the sale of goods (and certain services)

at retail in Iowa. A sale is not considered to be at retail and is thus not

taxable when: (1) tangible personal property is sold for the purpose of

resale; (2) tangible personal property is sold "for processing"; or (3)

electricity or steam is sold for processing tangible personal property

which is ultimately to be sold at retail.

Tangible personal property is sold for the purpose of resale when it is sold to retailers, wholesalers, jobbers, or any other person who is not the ultimate user of the property and who holds the property for the purpose of selling it to another. However, sales of building materials, supplies, and equipment to owners, contractors, sub-contractors or builders, for the erection of buildings or the alteration, repair, or improvement of real property, are retail sales.

Tangible personal property is sold "for processing" only if (1) such property is to be integrated by means of fabrication, compounding, manufacturing or germination into other tangible personal property to be sold ultimately at retail; (2) such property is to be consumed as fuel in creating heat, power, or steam to produce tangible personal property for sale, or for generating electric current either for sale or to produce tangible personal property for sale; (3) such property is to be consumed in the operation of implements of husbandry (i.e., motor vehicle fuel used in farm tractors or used in operating farm equipment drawn or propelled by farm tractors engaged in agricultural production); or (4) such property is a chemical directly used and consumed, dissipated, or depleted in producing personal property ultimately to be sold at retail although it is in no way a part of such personal property.

The sales tax only applies to the enumerated services when they are rendered, furnished, or performed for the ultimate user thereof.

User means the <u>immediate recipient</u> of the services who is entitled to exercise a right of power over the product of such services.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 422 (as amended by Laws 62nd General Assembly, House File 702, Division VII).

1966 Iowa Departmental Rules 694-750.

L. K. Tunks, "The Iowa Tax System," 23 Iowa Code Annotated 73.

Commerce Clearing House, <u>State Tax Reporter - Iowa</u>.

Use Tax

The use tax is complementary to the sales tax. With respect to tangible personal property, it is a tax imposed on the purchaser for the privilege of using such property in Iowa that was not bought in Iowa and on which Iowa sales tax was not due. The use tax on services is applicable when services are rendered, furnished, or performed <u>in</u> Iowa or when the product or result of such service is used in Iowa. The "user" of services is exempt from the use tax if sales tax has been paid on the service equal to the Iowa use tax rate.

Tangible personal property held for resale or used in or for processing is exempt from the use tax in the same manner and extent as provided for in the sales tax law.

If sales or use tax equal to the rate of the Iowa tax has been paid on an article or service in another state by the person using it in Iowa, no further tax is due. If the rate of tax paid by a person to another state on a given article is less than the rate of the Iowa tax, the rate of Iowa tax due is the difference between the rate of tax paid to the other state and the rate of tax due under Iowa law.

Any person who purchases tangible personal property, or services which are set forth in the statute, from out-of-state sources for use in Iowa subject to the use tax, is liable for the tax and must file a Consumer's Use Tax Return, claiming credit according to the rate of tax paid such other state, if any, but such credit cannot be claimed on the basis of a rate of tax higher than the Iowa rate of tax. Such return is required unless the seller is registered with the State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), and is authorized to collect the use tax for this state.

Every interstate seller who maintains a place of business in Iowa and makes sales of tangible personal property or taxable services for use in this state must register with the State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68). A retailer maintains a place of business within Iowa if he maintains within this state, directly or by a subsidiary, an office, distribution house, sales house, warehouse, or other place of business, or any agent operating within this state under the authority of the retailer or its subsidiary, irrespective of whether such place of business or agent is located here permanently or temporarily, or whether such retailer or subsidiary is admitted to do business within this state according to law.

Use tax returns, like sales tax returns, must be filed quarterly; the tax is due within one month after the close of the quarter.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 423 (as amended by Laws 62nd General Assembly, 1967, House File 702, Division VII).

1966 Iowa Departmental Rules 750-765.

L. K. Tunks, "The Iowa Tax System," 23 Iowa Code Annotated 73.

Property Tax

The Constitution of Iowa provides that the property of all corporations for pecuniary profit shall be subject to taxation, the same as the property of individuals. Corporations are subject to a tax on all real and personal property that is not specifically exempted.

Ownership on the first day of January is the basis for determining what property is taxable. Personal property is assessed every year; real estate is valued every four years. In the years in which real estate is not assessed, the assessor lists and assesses any real property that was not included in the previous assessment and any buildings erected since the previous assessment.

The valuation and assessment of property for purposes of taxation and determining the rate of assessment, shall be assessed at twenty-seven percent (27%) of such actual value, and such value so assessed shall be taken and considered as the taxable value of such property upon which the levy shall be made. The actual value is to be construed as the fair and reasonable "market value." This means the fair and reasonable exchange, in the year in which the property is listed and valued, between a willing buyer and a willing seller, each being familiar with all the facts relating to the particular property and not acting under compulsion. In the event "market value" cannot be established in this manner, then the assessor may consider its productive and earning capacity, if any, and other industrial conditions, and other factors provided by statute.

A corporation may ask the county or city board of review to review the assessment made by the county or city assessor. The board's decision may be appealed to the district court within twenty days after the board's adjournment. In such a challenge, the burden of proof is on the corporation.

A corporation is considered to be a merchant if it holds or has in its control personal property that was purchased for resale. The assessment is based on the average value of the goods during the year preceding the time of assessment. A corporation is considered to be a manufacturer if it holds personal property for the purpose of adding to its value by processing before selling it. Such personal property, whether in a finished or unfinished state, is assessed at its average value during the year preceding the year of assessment.

Personal property deemed to be in transit is now exempt from the personal property tax. This includes property in interstate commerce, and in certain private warehouses. Machinery used in manufacturing operations is regarded as real estate for tax purposes.

An Iowa corporation engaged in manufacturing is required to list its moneys and credits; these are taxed at a flat rate of five (5) mills on the dollar of actual valuation plus one (1) mill for payment of a Korean war bonus¹. The first five thousand dollars, net, of moneys and credits is exempted from taxation. The Iowa Code defines "credit" to include every

¹The moneys and credits tax for individuals is limited to a rate of one mill for payment of the Korean war bonus.

claim or demand due or to become due for money, labor, or other valuable thing, every annuity or sum of money receivable at stated periods, and all money or property of any kind secured by deed, title bond, mortgage, or otherwise. Shares of stock of a foreign corporation are also termed as credits for tax purposes.

Certain corporations, such as firms that have extensive business connections outside the state, are assessed by the State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), rather than the local assessors. The Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), uses formulas designed to produce a fair approximation of taxable property attributable to Iowa, and refers the data to local authorities for collection.

Public utility plants are assessed by the State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68). A corporation is entitled to appeal the Commission's, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), decision to the district court of the county in which it has its principal place of business.

The assessment activities of the State Tax Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), are subject both to the procedural safeguards of hearing at the corporation's option before the Commission, (Department of Revenue 1-1-68), and <u>de novo</u> review in the district court, with further appeal to the State Supreme Court.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 407, 420, 427, 428, 434, 435, 441, and 443, (as amended by Laws 62nd General Assembly, Chapter 354, 1967).

1966 Iowa Departmental Rules 665-694.

L. K. Tunks, "The Iowa Tax System," 23 Iowa Code Annotated 73.

Open Port Warehousing

Private warehouses may be built in Iowa by any private person, partnership, joint venture, corporation, fiduciary, trust, or estate, for the purpose of storing personal property, goods, wares, and merchandise for any length of time while in transit to a final destination outside of Iowa. The personal property in transit in the warehouses is exempt from taxation, and while it is in the warehouses, the merchandise may be bound, divided, severed, broken in bulk, labeled or relabeled.

Exempt status must be so designated on the books of the warehouse and these books must be open at all times for inspection by authorized personnel.

Claims for tax exemptions must be filed with the assessor on or before February 1 of each personal property assessment year. All claims must be accompanied by a certification of the warehouse operator as to the status on the warehouse books of the property involved.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 427.1.

Commerce Clearing House, State Tax Reporter - Iowa.

Chain Store Tax

The statutory definition of a chain store that is subject to this tax is a store operated in conjunction with one or more additional stores in which the profit from the operation goes to the same owner. Certain stores are exempt from the tax. Only one of the stores need be in Iowa. The tax is an occupation tax and is not in lieu of any other tax.

The rate of tax is based on the number of stores operated in the state. The tax scale is as follows:

NUMBER OF STORES AMOUNT OF TAX PER STORE

2 - 10	\$ 5.00
11 - 20	15.00
21 - 30	35.00
31 - 40	65.00
41 - 50	105.00
51 and over	155.00

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 424.

L. K. Tunks, "The Iowa Tax System," 23 <u>Iowa Code Annotated</u> 73.

Commerce Clearing House, <u>State Tax Reporter - Iowa</u>.

SECURITY TRANSACTIONS

Real Estate

Real Property Mortgage

Nature. Iowa mortgage law follows the lien theory; that is, the debtor holds title and right of possession to the property and the creditor holds a lien on the property.

Foreclosure. Mortgage foreclosure follows equitable proceedings in the district court. A mortgage that gives the mortgage holder the right to sell the property in case of default without resort to the court is not valid in Iowa. Under the established procedure, the court renders a judgment for the amount due and orders the property to be sold according to statutory requirements. If the property sells for less than the amount due on the judgment, the debtor is still liable for the remainder. If there is a surplus from the sale and all other liens have been paid, the debtor is entitled to the surplus.

If the debtor defaults on his obligations under the mortgage he may attempt to deed his equity of redemption to the mortgage holder to avoid foreclosure. This may be effective, but usually any method of cutting off the debtor's rights other than by statutory foreclosure is carefully scrutinized by the courts.

A contract of sale containing a forfeiture provision may be used as a security device. In this situation the seller retains legal title, while the buyer normally has possession. Any forfeiture of such a contract must be done according to statutory procedure, despite provisions in the contract to the contrary. In some instances the Iowa court has treated the purchaser's rights the same as those of a mortgagor, and has required statutory foreclosure proceedings in order to cut off the rights of the purchaser under such a contract.

Redemption. After the foreclosure sale the mortgagor has one year in which to redeem the property. He can do this by paying the amount for which the property sold at the foreclosure sale plus all costs and interest. After redemption the property is free and clear from any unpaid portion of the judgment under which it was sold, although a personal deficiency may still be outstanding against the mortgagor. The mortgagor has the exclusive right to redeem the property during the first six months and the last three months during the year following the foreclosure sale. Creditors have the right to redeem during the period from six to nine months after the foreclosure sale and may redeem from each other during this period. If the mortgaged property consists of less than

ten acres, the parties may agree that the statutory right of redemption be reduced to six months, provided the mortgagee waives any rights to a deficiency judgment after the foreclosure proceedings.

The debtor (mortgagor) has the right to possession of the property during the year following the foreclosure sale. He may transfer his right to redeem, but that right may not be seized on execution.

If the mortgagor should allow the property to waste during his year of possession following the foreclosure sale, the purchaser at the sale may request the court to appoint a receiver to take charge of the property, or an injunction may be issued to require the mortgagor to stop any intentional depletion of the property. If the property is damaged the mortgagor is liable and damage may be recovered by the purchaser or the ultimate owner.

The purchaser at the foreclosure sale receives a sheriff's certificate. If at the end of the one year redemption period no action has been taken by the mortgagor or any creditor to redeem the property, the purchaser is entitled to a sheriff's deed to the property and his interest becomes absolute.

Other Real Property Security Devices

<u>Deed of Trust</u>. In Iowa a deed of trust is treated the same as a mortgage, and any foreclosure or sale must be executed in the same manner as for a mortgage.

Deed absolute. A deed that purports to convey the property absolutely, but that actually is intended by the parties to have the same

effect as a mortgage, is treated as a mortgage by the courts when it is established by competent evidence that the deed was given as a security device.

Equitable mortgage. When money is loaned or credit is extended in reliance on an oral promise that certain property will secure the transaction, the court may decree an "equitable" mortgage on the property.

This will be treated in the same manner as if an actual mortgage had been executed on the property.

Mortgages covering future advancements. This is the "open-end mortgage" and allows the lender to make loans periodically on the same security without calling for an additional mortgage as each loan is made. This type of mortgage is legal in Iowa and is used frequently. When properly recorded such a mortgage, including loans made after execution and recording of later mortgages, is prior to any later mortgage providing the original lender has no actual notice of the subsequent mortgages.

Real Property Recording Act

Nature. Iowa's recording act is "the state of the record at the time of transaction" type. The statute states:

"No instrument <u>affecting real estate</u> is of any validity against <u>subsequent purchasers</u> for a <u>valuable consideration without notice</u> unless filed in the office of the recorder of the county in which the same lies...." (emphasis supplied)

<u>Purchase-money mortgage</u>. Purchase-money mortgages, like other mortgages and liens, take priority in order of their execution,

subject to modifications of the recording act. They have priority, however, over any judgment lien against the purchaser, any mortgage executed by the purchaser before he took title to the property, and over dower and other rights attaching to his interest on his acquisition of title.

Vendor's lien. If a part of the purchase price remains unpaid, the seller has an implied lien on the property. If the lien is expressly reserved in the deed of conveyance, it is treated in the same manner as a purchase-money mortgage.

<u>Estoppel by deed</u>. If a person who has no title to a piece of property transfers it with warranty and later acquires title to the property, the title belongs to the party to whom he transferred it.

Defense to a Mortgage

Statute of frauds. The Iowa statute of frauds applies to all contracts "for the creation or transfer of any interest in lands...."

Therefore, a legal mortgage must be in writing. An assignment of such a mortgage may be done orally, however, since this is considered a transfer of real property.

Part performance may remove oral contracts for the transfer of land from application of the statute of frauds in Iowa.

Invalidity of the mortgage debt. When a mortgage is given to secure a debt, the debt usually is evidenced by a note and the two go together. Thus the invalidity of the debt is a bar to the foreclosure of the mortgage.

Statute of limitations. The Iowa court has stated that a mortgage cannot be enforced if the debt is barred by the statute of limitations.

The statute of limitations on written contracts, which would include promissory notes, is ten years. A special statute of limitations bars actions to foreclose "ancient" mortgages after twenty years. The court has held that the purpose of this special statute is to settle property rights and avoid stale claims, and not to extend the period for foreclosing mortgages.

Personal Property

Uniform Commercial Code

The Uniform Commercial Code became effective July 4, 1966.

Other Chattel Security Devices

<u>Pawns</u>. In Iowa, the regulation and control of pawns and pawnbrokers is a function of local municipal government.

Criminal Provision

If a debtor who has given a security interest in collateral will-fully and with intent to defraud disposes of the property without the written consent of the holder of the instrument, he is guilty of larceny. Failure to produce the property covered by the instrument is <u>prima facie</u> evidence that the debtor has disposed of the property illegally.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 554, 557, 558, 614, 615, 622, 626, 628, 654, 655, 656, 710.

[&]quot;Equitable Mortgages in Iowa," 44 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 716 (1959).

"Guide to Procedure Under Article Nine of the U.C.C.--Secured Transactions" available from Secretary of State.

CREDITORS' REMEDIES

The 1965 legislature adopted the Uniform Commercial Code which became effective July 4, 1966.

Corporations doing business in Iowa are subject to, and are entitled to avail themselves of, the statutory provisions governing the creditors' remedies of judgment, execution, attachment, garnishment, and proceedings auxiliary to execution. Execution sales of real estate are subject to redemption for a year after the sale. The Iowa exemption laws are rather liberal.

Judgment and Execution

A judgment of an Iowa district court is a lien on the debtor's real estate for ten years after its entry, although the judgment itself remains valid as a basis for execution or a new action for twenty years. Execution reaches most interests of the debtor, legal or equitable, except that execution sales of real estate are subject to the right of the debtor and junior lienors to redeem within the year following the sale. The judgment debtor is entitled to possession during the redemption period.

Attachment and Garnishment

Attachment is a provisional remedy available before judgment as a means of bringing into the custody of the court nonexempt property of the debtor pending the litigation. Attachment is available in Iowa,

however, only if one or more of twelve statutory grounds exists. Quasi in rem jurisdiction may be acquired in litigation against a foreign corporation or a non-resident by attachment of property of the debtor in the state, and notice may be given by publication. Attachment is available also if the debtor has disposed of his property, if he is about to dispose of his property in a manner prejudicial to creditors, if he is about to remove himself permanently out of the county or the state, or if he owes the plaintiff for property obtained under false pretenses.

Garnishment is available either as a mode of attachment or a mode of execution.

Proceedings Auxiliary to Execution

There is statutory authorization for bringing a judgment debtor into court for the purpose of examination. While there is constitutional protection against imprisonment for debt, a debtor may be compelled to appear, to answer questions, and to surrender property in proceedings auxiliary to execution, or pain of suffering the penalties of contempt for disobedience.

Exemptions

A corporation (or any other kind of business association) is not given any exemption by Iowa law. The exemptions for individuals, however, particularly heads of families, are relatively liberal. The Iowa homestead exemption covers the home and lot in a city or the home and forty acres in the country. There is no money ceiling on its value.

The homestead exemption, however, cannot be asserted against creditors under contracts antedating the acquisition of the homestead.

Among the notable items of personal property that are exempt are life insurance, which is subject to no statutory limit; personal earnings up to \$35 per week plus \$3 per week for each dependent under eighteen years; an automobile, if used regularly in earning a living; and tools, instruments, or books used in the debtor's trade or profession.

Stockholder Liability

The Iowa corporation law specifically provided that nothing shall exempt stockholders from individual liability to the amount of unpaid installments on the stock owned by them (or transferred by them for the purpose of defrauding creditors). Execution against a corporation may be levied on the private property of any such individual to that extent. The foregoing provisions do not apply to building and loan or savings and loan associations.

Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors

There is a rather elaborate Iowa statute regulating assignments for the benefit of creditors, which contemplates supervision by the district court. The statute is not regarded as superseding the common law, however, and, as a matter of fact, most general assignments made in this state are outside the statute.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 554, 624, 626, 627, 639, 642, 681, 491.

J. E. Heiserman, "Procedures Available For Implementation of a Judgment," 42 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 265 (1957).

Stefan A. Riesenfeld, "Collection of Money Judgments," 42 <u>Iowa Law</u> <u>Review</u> 155 (1957).

Lee B. Blum, "Statutory Redemption After Mortgage Foreclosure," 35 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 72 (1949).

TRADE REGULATION

Iowa has a half dozen trade regulation statutes, which are fairly typical of state legislation in this area.

Combinations, Pools, and Trusts

The most important of the Iowa trade regulation statutes probably is the chapter prohibiting combinations to fix prices of commodities or to restrain competition in the sale of commodities. The sanctions imposed include fines, imprisonment of officers, invalidation of contracts, forfeiture of corporate charters, and recoverability of damages by persons injured by violations.

The same chapter of the Iowa statutes prohibits what are called "gift enterprises," which are defined to include the giving of premiums and prizes to induce purchases of merchandise, but the statute is narrowly drawn and was held to be unconstitutionally discriminatory when it was invoked against a trading stamp company. Accordingly, it has not militated against trading stamp operations in the state.

Unfair Discrimination

The Iowa statute prohibits unfair discrimination in sales and in

purchases in the state. The sales prohibited include sale of commercial services as well as sales of commodities of commerce, but the statute does not apply to services the rates for which are controlled by any government agency. Moreover, discrimination is prohibited only if it is for the purpose of destroying a competitive business or creating a monopoly, and only if it discriminates between different sections or commodities within the state. Differences that are due to differences in cost are explicitly authorized, and prices may be charged to meet competition in any section or commodity. Sanctions against violations include fine, imprisonment, invalidation of contracts, and revocation of permit to do business in the state. An injunctive remedy also is recognized.

Resale Price Maintenance

Resale price maintenance is authorized by the Iowa fair-trade law; however, the Iowa Supreme Court has held the non-signer privision, which subjects non-signers to liability in unfair competition for selling below the fair trade price, an unconstitutional delegation of legislative authority.

Options and Bucket Shops

Operation of any business engaged in pretended buying or selling of products on margins without any intention of future delivery is prohibited as a bucket-shop operation.

Registration of Trade-marks, Labels, and Advertisements

The Iowa law authorizes registration of any label, trade-mark or form of advertisement that is "of a distinctive character" and not identical or in close resemblance to any previously registered label, mark or advertisement. The registration is effected by providing copies to the Secretary of State, and the certificate of registration thus obtained is prima facie proof of the adoption of the trade symbol by the registrant. The registration is effective for ten years and is renewable. Injunctive relief and damages are provided for infringement, and unlawful use is also punishable as an offense.

Unfair Cigarette Sales Act

Iowa has a sales-below-cost statute but its scope is limited to sales of cigarettes. Both wholesale and retail sales are governed by the act. The cost of cigarettes for the purpose of the statutory prohibition is the invoice or lowest replacement cost plus the cost of doing business. In the case of a wholesaler, the cost of doing business is rebuttably presumed to be four percent of the basic cost; in the case of a retailer, the cost of doing business is rebuttably presumed to be eight percent of the basic cost of the cigarettes. Sales made in good faith to meet competition are protected by a saving clause in the statute. The statute authorizes injunctions at the instigation of the State Tax Commission or any injured person to prevent violations, and the State Tax Commission may suspend or revoke the sales permit of any violator.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 547, 548, 550, 551, 551A, 552, 553.

"The Iowa Cigarette Sales Act," 35 <u>Iowa Law Review</u> 440 (1950).

LOCAL ORDINANCES AND PLANNING AND ZONING

Municipal Ordinances

The legislature has given cities and towns power to make and enforce ordinances not inconsistent with the laws of the state. Ordinances may include all those necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity, improve the morals, order, comfort, and convenience of the municipalities and their inhabitants.

Cities and towns may adopt building codes and ordinances for the regulation of all construction, major repairs, and remodeling, installation of electrical, heating, ventilating, air-conditioning and plumbing fixtures apparatus, and equipment. Cities and towns can establish by ordinance building lines on private or public property for the protection of public health or safety, and may prohibit the erection of any building or other structure between such lines and the street or highway line. All cities that have populations of six thousand or more must adopt by ordinance a set of plumbing regulations and provide for the inspection of plumbing installations. Other cities and towns may adopt such regulations.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 366 and 368.

Home Rule for Cities and Towns

The Iowa legislature enacted a home rule statute in 1965. It confers limited discretion upon cities and towns in enacting ordinances and in managing their own affairs. The statute was challenged in the courts but won court approval. The legislature subsequently passed the legislation for the second time in 1967 and the matter will be placed before the voters in November of 1968. If approved by the voters, and with the approval of the courts, this could be the strongest home rule legislation in the nation.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 368.

Municipal Zoning

Cities and towns are authorized to regulate and restrict the location and use of buildings, structures, and land for trade and industry. The city or town council may divide the city or town into districts for this purpose. All regulations and restrictions must be uniform on each class or kind of buildings throughout each district, although the regulations in one district may differ from those in other districts. In making zoning regulations, reasonable consideration must be given to the character of the area, its peculiar suitability for particular uses, conserving the value of buildings, and encouraging the most appropriate use of land

throughout the city or town.

The council shall appoint a zoning commission to recommend the boundaries of the various original districts, and appropriate regulations and restrictions to be enforced therein.

The council shall also provide for the appointment of a board of adjustment and in the regulations and restrictions adopted pursuant to the authority of this chapter shall provide that the said board of adjustment may in appropriate cases and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards make special exceptions to the terms of the ordinances in harmony with its general purpose and intent and in accordance with general or specific rules therein contained, and provide that any property owner aggrieved by the action of the council in the adoption of such regulations and restrictions, may petition the said board of adjustment directly to modify regulations and restrictions as applied to such property owners. Final control over zoning regulations is exercised by the city or town council.

A business that is interested in doing business in a particular locality should investigate the local zoning ordinances, both general and specific.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 414.

County Zoning

By creating a county zoning commission to advise it, the board

of supervisors of any county may regulate the use of land and structures located within the county but lying outside of the corporate limits of any city or town. The board may charge a reasonable building permit fee.

If the applicant shows that the proposed structure will comply with the applicable regulations, the board must issue the permit.

The board may divide the county, or any area or areas within the county, into districts in order to enact and enforce zoning restrictions and regulations. The regulations must be made with reasonable consideration for the character of the area and the peculiar suitability of the area for particular uses.

Also, the board may provide for the regulation and restriction of the erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, repair or use of buildings, structures or land. The supervisors also are authorized to provide for the manner in which these regulations and restrictions shall be determined, established, and enforced, and how they may be amended, supplemented, or changed.

The county zoning authority does not extend to land, farm houses, farm barns, farm outbuildings or other buildings, structures, or erections which are primarily adapted, by reason of nature and area, for use for agricultural purposes while so used; provided, however, that such regulations or ordinances which relate to any structure, building, dam, obstruction, deposit or excavation in or on the flood plains of any river or stream shall apply thereto.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 358A.

Regional and Metropolitan Planning Commissions

The governing bodies of the cities, towns and counties of Iowa, and those of adjoining states if authorized to do so, may create regional or metropolitan planning commissions. School districts and other local units of government may participate in these commissions. The commissions have the task of making comprehensive studies and plans for development of the area. The purpose is to eliminate planning duplication and promote economy and efficiency in the coordinated development of the area.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 473A (as amended by the 62nd G.A., 1967).

Joint Exercise of Governmental Powers

Any power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or capable of exercise by a public agency of this state may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any other public agency of this state having such power or powers, privilege or authority, and jointly with any public agency of any other state or of the United States to the extent that laws of such other state or of the United States permit such joint exercise or enjoyment.

Any public agency of this state may enter into an agreement with one or more public or private agencies for joint or cooperative action, including the creation of a separate entity to carry out the purpose of

the agreement.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 28E.

NATURAL RESOURCES

In most sections of Iowa, shortage of water has not been an obstacle to the location of new industries or to the expansion of existing ones. Furthermore, there is considerable evidence that additional supplies for industrial expansion can be developed from both surface and underground sources.

Water Use

The Iowa Natural Resources Council has jurisdiction over public and private waters in the state and the land adjacent to these waters. The law requires industrial users to obtain a permit from the Council if (1) the corporation has its own water supply inside the city limits of a municipality and its projected water use would exceed by more than three percent the highest daily beneficial use prior to May 16, 1957; or (2) if the corporation diverts, stores, or withdraws more than 5,000 gallons per day from any source of supply other than a municipal water system.

A permit must be obtained to divert water or any material from the surface directly into any underground watercourse or basin.

To obtain a permit the user must apply in writing to the Council.

The permit fee is \$15. The application must state the designated beneficial use for which the permit is sought, the specific limits as to quantity, time and place, and the rate of diversion, storage, or withdrawal of waters. A hearing is held in the county in which the permit is sought and the Water Commissioner rules on the application. Any person aggrieved by the ruling may appeal to the Council and then to the district court.

A permit may be granted for any period of time not exceeding ten years. The right of the corporation to the use of water terminates when it ceases for three consecutive years to use it for the specific beneficial purposes authorized in the permit, and the permittee has been notified thereof by the Water Commissioner. The corporation may sell, transfer, or assign its permit by conveying, leasing or otherwise transferring the ownership of the land described in the permit. However, the permit does not constitute ownership or absolute rights of use of such waters, since the waters remain subject to the principal of beneficial use and the orders of the Council.

A permit will not be granted if the proposed use will impair the effect of pollution control laws or the navigability of a navigable watercourse.

Water Pollution

Pollution of the water of any river, stream, or pond in Iowa is punishable as a misdemeanor and abatable as a nuisance. Pollution of the water of a stream is also an interference with private riparian

rights and may be actionable in damages or the basis for injunctive relief to abate the private nuisance. Pollution is also subject to regulation by the Iowa Water Pollution Control Commission through the State Department of Health. A permit is required for the discharge of sewage, industrial waste, or other wastes or for the installation or operation of disposal systems. Surface water quality standards have been adopted and approved.

Projects on Floodways or Flood Plains

No structure, dam, obstruction, deposit or excavation may be erected, used, or maintained on the floodways or flood plains of Iowa streams unless prior approval has been obtained from the Natural Resources Council. An application and engineering plans for such projects must be submitted to the Council for review with regard to its effect on (1) the efficiency or capacity of the floodway, or (2) the control, development, protection, allocation, or utilization of the water resources of the state, or (3) the state comprehensive plan for water resources, or an approved local water resources plan. The Council has considerable discretion in reviewing such projects and is directed by statute to determine and provide methods of constructing and equipping dams that will conserve and protect public and private riparian rights, and to determine the characteristics of floods which reasonably may be expected to occur.

Air Pollution Control

The 1967 legislature created an Iowa Air Pollution Control Commission within the State Department of Health. The State Health Commissioner and eight other citizens appointed by the Governor serve as members of the commission. They are authorized to establish and enforce regulations for the abatement, control and prevention of air pollution.

Oil and Gas

A permit must be obtained from the Natural Resources Council (acting through the Office of the State Geologist) before commencing operations for the drilling or deepening of a well for oil or gas, including wells drilled for the underground storage of gas or oil. A fifty dollar fee is required for each well in addition to reasonable bond conditioned upon compliance with the statute (Code Chapter 84) and the rules and regulations of the Council.

Surface Mining

A license must be obtained from the Department of Mines and Minerals for the surface mining of coal, gypsum, clay, stone, sand, gravel or other ores or mineral solids, and for underground or open-cut mines for coal or gypsum. A fee of fifty dollars must accompany the initial application with annual renewal fee of ten dollars. Each surface mining site must be registered with the department and bond or security furnished in an amount sufficient to appropriately conserve and

rehabilitate affected lands.

References:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapters 82, 83, 84, 135, 455A, 455B, 469, 657 and 732.

Acts of the 62nd G.A., Chapter 114 (1967).

Acts of the 62nd G.A., Chapter 162 (1967).

John F. Timmons, John C. O'Byrne, and Richard K. Frevert, <u>Iowa's</u> <u>Water Resources</u> (Iowa State College Press, Ames, 1956).

Ted L. Willrich and N. William Hines, <u>Water Pollution Control and Abatement</u>, (Iowa State University Press, Ames, Iowa, 1967).

N. William Hines, A Decade of Experience Under the Iowa Water Permit System (Agricultural Law Center, College of Law, the University of Iowa, Iowa City, Iowa, 1966).

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

Municipal Support of Industrial Projects

Chapter 419, Code of Iowa, 1966, and subsequent legislation enacted by the 62nd General Assembly provides for municipal assistance in the development of industrial projects in the event that local capital is not available. Each municipality shall have the power to acquire land and to acquire, construct and equip a facility for the manufacturing, processing or assembling of any agricultural or manufactured product. There is no limitation on the number of projects. Facilities must be located within the State and within a radius of eight miles of the municipality.

The municipality has the power to lease these facilities to others

at not less than the average competitive commercial rental rate in the locale. The city or town may not act as owner or operator but must act as lessor only.

The entire cost of each project must be paid from the proceeds of the issuance and sale of revenue bonds. These bonds are authorized by the municipality in accordance with general state laws, following a public hearing on their issuance. The bonds are payable solely and only from the proceeds of a lease and may be further secured by a mortgage and trust indenture. Payments on the lease must include an additional sum equal to the amount of taxes which each political subdivision would receive if the property were privately owned. The municipality must pay this sum from the proceeds of the lease to the political subdivisions.

Reference:

Laws 1966, Chapters 384 and 419

Development Credit Corporation

The Iowa Business Development Credit Corporation, a new corporation designed to provide loans to new "higher-risk" industrial ventures, is expected to be in full operation early in 1968.

The objectives of the new corporation are two-fold. First, to finance qualified industrial expansion in cases where the firms do not have sufficient conventional borrowing power. Second, in conjunction with the lending of funds, financial, marketing and managerial counseling

will be performed.

The corporation is a joint effort by Iowa financial institutions and established businesses to provide a place where new or expanding businesses can borrow funds at satisfactory rates although their collateral or financial backing is less than conventional lenders can accept.

An 18-member Board of Directors has been selected and an administrator will be employed to investigate the requests for loans.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 496B.

Public Docks

Any city or town bordering upon a navigable waterway may create a department of public docks, under the direction of a dock board. The department can prepare or have prepared a comprehensive general plan for the improvement of the municipality's harbor and waterfront, making provision for the needs of commerce and shipping, and for the use of riverfront property or other property whether abutting the riverfront or not and whether located in the municipality or not. The plan includes providing for industrial and manufacturing purposes. It also may provide for the construction of docks, basins, piers, wharves, warehouses, tunnels, belt railways, cranes, machinery, dock apparatus, etc.

The dock board may purchase or acquire by condemnation or other lawful means such personal property and abutting or non-abutting lands

(inside or outside the municipality) as may be necessary for use in the provision, development, full utilization, and in the construction of any publicly owned harbor, waterfront, dock, etc., as provided for in the plan adopted by the board.

Dock boards have exclusive charge and control of the wharf property belonging to the municipality. They also have exclusive charge and control of the building, rebuilding, altering, repairing, operating, and leasing of such property. Leases may be made for industrial and manufacturing purposes.

The municipal council has the power to levy a property tax, not exceeding one-half mill, for these purposes. In cities that have a population of less than 30,000, an additional tax of up to one-half mill may be levied. If the dock board deems it necessary or advisable to issue bonds in support of these activities, they may petition the council to issue either dock bonds or revenue bonds.

Reference:

Iowa Code 1966, Chapter 384.

Public Utilities Regulation

In 1963 Iowa enacted its first statute governing the regulation of public utilities by the state. Before this, regulation was left to individual communities.

The 1963 act provides that the Iowa State Commerce Commission will regulate the rates and services of public utilities. "Public utilities"

are defined as any person, partnership, business association, or corporation owning or operating facilities for furnishing communication services or electricity to the public, for compensation, or for furnishing gas or water to the public, for compensation, via piped distribution systems.

Certain telephone companies, municipally-owned utilities other than water, unincorporated villages owning distribution systems, and cooperative associations are not subject to rate regulation, while municipally-owned water works are entirely exempt from regulation.

Except for the duties and jurisdiction conferred upon the State

Commerce Commission by the 1963 act, all rights of municipal corporations to franchise and regulate use of streets, alleys, and other public property, and all rights acquired by franchise or agreement are preserved.

Every public utility is required to furnish reasonably adequate services at reasonable rates and charges in accordance with tariffs filed with the Commerce Commission.

The Iowa State Commerce Commission also has the responsibility of general supervision of all railroads in the state, gas transmission pipelines, electric transmission, and the economic and operating regulation of motor carriers. Motor carriers, passenger carriers, contract carriers and liquid carriers must obtain operating authority from the Commission and comply with its rules regarding safety, rates and annual reports. The Commission also receives for filing the operating authority of all interstate carriers operating in Iowa.

Reference:

Code of Iowa, 1966, Chapter 490A.

3 1723 02101 5383